
Heber City Corporation
City Council Meeting

November 5, 2009

7:00p.m.

REGULAR MEETING 

The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular Meeting on November 5, 
2009, in the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah.

Present: Mayor David R. Phillips

Council Members Jeffery Bradshaw
Elizabeth Hokanson
Eric Straddeck
Nile Horner
Robert Patterson

Also Present: City Manager Mark K. Anderson
Deputy City Recorder Michelle Kellogg
City Engineer Bart Mumford
City Planner Allen Fawcett
Chief of Police Ed Rhoades

Others Present:  Benny Mergist, Ross Nichol, Chris Humphreys, Kieth Rawlings, Kathryn 
Gardner, Wayne Foy, Kathy Day, Lane Lythgoe, Brian Lee, Mike Johnston, Brad Graham, Paul 
Berg, Sheldon Case, LaRose Hiatt and Hunter Olsen.

Pledge of Allegiance: Councilmember Straddeck
Prayer: Councilmember Hokanson

Minutes: September 22, 2009 Special Meeting
October, 1, 2009 Work Meeting
October 1, 2009 Regular Meeting
October 15, 2009 Work Meeting

Mayor Phillips asked for approval of the September 22, 2009, Special Meeting, October 1, 2009 
Work Meeting, October 1, 2009 Regular Meeting and the October 15, 2009 Work Meeting 
minutes.  Councilmember Patterson moved to approve said minutes.  Councilmember Straddeck 

Page 1 of 7
cc11052009



seconded the motion.  Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner 
and Patterson.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public Comment: Ross Nichol, a resident of Midway and lifetime property owner in the Heber 
Valley, talked about his proposed annexation.  He was initially told by the engineers and the 
developer the annexation process would take four to six months.  It had now been 2 years 
because of many delays.  He explained that if the Council could not reach a decision in the next 
four months, his offer to give his land to the City for the bypass would no longer be available. 
Anderson explained one condition for that annexation was that a portion of Nichol’s property 
would have to be given as a right-of-way for the bypass.  Mayor Phillips asked if the Council 
would like to see this issue again at the next meeting. Three of the council members wanted to 
see this annexation addressed again.  Anderson wanted to clarify that after the annexation took 
place, it wasn’t guaranteed that the site plan would be approved as it was initially laid out.

Mayor Phillips wanted to clarify that Nichol’s intent was that, after March 2010, he would 
reconsider the annexation and dedication of the bypass land.  Nichol agreed that that was his 
thought.  Councilmember Horner said he thought Mike Kohler was going to schedule a meeting 
with UDOT. He wanted to make sure that that would be the exact route before proceeding. 
Mayor Phillips stated he would talk to Kohler about the bypass standing.

CONSENT AGENDA

Resolution 2009-08 – A Resolution Giving Support to the 2010 Census:

Approval – Partnership Agreement between Heber City Corporation and the United States 
Census Bureau:

Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilmember Straddeck 
seconded the motion. Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner 
and Patterson.

PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) First Public Hearing  - A 
Public Hearing to Consider Potential Projects for which funding may be applied under the 
CDBG Small Citites Program for Program Year 2009:  The deputy recorder read the public 
notice as printed in the Wasatch Wave.  Mayor Phillips said prior to applying for this grant, a 
public hearing must be held and one of three criteria must be met: There must be a low and 
moderate income benefit, the project must aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight, 

Page 2 of 7
cc11052009



and/or it must have an urgent health welfare need. No comments from the public were made. 
Mayor Phillips closed the Public Hearing and asked for comments from the Council. 
Councilmember Horner requested the current list of possible projects from the Planning 
Department.  Boal said he would get the list to the Council this week.

APPOINTMENTS

Sheldon Case, Principal and Kathryn Gardner, PTA President – Timpanogos Intermediate 
School – Expressing appreciation to the Mayor and City Council for Sidewalk 
Construction Support:  Gardner expressed gratitude in behalf of the school for the sidewalk 
installed last summer in front of Timpanogos Intermediate School.  She said many students used 
it and it added to their safety.  Principal Case also expressed his thanks to the Council and to 
Mumford for the job well done.  Mayor Phillips also thanked Mumford for his work and the 
quick action of the Council in making that decision.

Paul Berg – Request to amend Lot #3 of the Activa Plaza Condominium Plat – 325 West 
600 South:  Berg said he would like to split Lot 3 into four units.  The use for this lot would not 
change.  Mayor Phillips asked if the utilities would be separate for each unit.  It was indicated 
gas and electric would be separate, but water and sewer would be billed to only one unit and the 
tenants would have to decide how to divide it.  Berg stated that a few neighbors had complained 
about the noise coming from the building so a sound study was performed and the noise did not 
exceed the acceptable level.  Councilmember Hokanson asked what those units would contain. 
She was told a sporting goods store, offices for Activa Plaza, and The Fit Stop.

Councilmember Hokanson motioned to approve the amendment to Lot 3 of the Activa Plaza 
Condominium Plat.  Councilmember Patterson seconded the motion.  Councilmember Horner 
asked if the offices split again, would Berg need to come back for another approval.  Berg said 
he would have to come back and go through the same process according to the City Code.  It 
might be a possibility this could come back again.  

Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner and Patterson.

Brian Lee approached the Council and asked if, in the future when a complaint was unjustified, 
as with the noise complaint, could the cost be put back on the protesters.  In this case, the 
complaint was not substantiated.  Anderson said there were no maximum decibel levels that 
would have to be met that was identified in the Code.  Lee said his cost of $1200-$1500 for this 
problem was history, but he was requesting this for the future.  Councilmember Horner asked 
what if the complaint had been legitimate.  Lee responded that the accused would have to bear 
the cost.  Councilmember Horner suggested having staff check out the problem first to see if 
there was legitimacy to the complaint before advising the accused party to prove their position.

Page 3 of 7
cc11052009



Fawcett said there was no noise requirement put in the motion given by the Planning 
Commission.  The language in the motion only said that the noise should meet a residential 
standard. Anderson quoted the exact motion. Lee asked to consider his proposal for the future.

ACTION ITEMS

Ordinance 2009-19 – An Ordinance amending Section 18.103.090 of the Heber City 
Municipal Code, Electronic Message Centers, Changeable Copy Areas and Reader Boards 
– Amendment requested by Chris Humphreys of Walgreens:  Humphreys stated he had met 
with the Planning Commission and realized that there was resistance to reader boards, but with 
the changes he made, he felt it would be an improvement over the current Code.  He suggested 
only installing monument boards (signs at ground level) with a limited size of 24 square feet. 
This proposed ordinance would also set limits on the brightness, speed and graphics.  It closed a 
loophole that stated if a business already had a reader board, it could convert it to an electronic 
board with no regard to size.  The ordinance would also set a time limit the boards could be lit 
up.  They would have to be turned off at 10:00 p.m.  It could broadcast City messages, amber 
alerts, flu shots, etc.  Another benefit would be to promote local events and charities and 
encourage business.  He thought every part of the amendment was an improvement over the 
current Code language.

Mayor Phillips asked if the advertising was limited to only Walgreens’ products on its message 
board. Humphreys stated that was correct.  Councilmember Straddeck asked why it was needed. 
Humphreys said people weren’t aware of all the services; i.e. pharmacy hours, if the flu shot 
vaccine was available, etc. It was for public information.  Councilmember Straddeck asked if 
zoning allowed a reader board for Walgreens. Humphreys said yes.

Councilmember Hokanson wanted to hear from the Planning Commission to know why they 
were opposed.  Councilmember Horner said the ordinance should be changed but he didn’t like 
this particular amendment.  Humphreys agreed but he had wanted to get some form of his 
proposal passed by the Planning Commission.

Kieth Rawlings, Planning Commission Chairman, said he was concerned with what Heber 
should look like and he didn’t want reader boards up and down Main Street.  Other resort towns 
didn’t have them.  The Planning Commission voted this down 4-2.  Mayor Phillips asked if the 
commission’s denial was for aesthetic purposes only and Rawlings said yes.

Councilmember Horner said he liked having the sign turned off at a certain time at night. Hiatt 
said she came to the Planning Commission three times.  She thought it was a good way for 
businesses to advertise.  She said not everybody knows where every business was located. 
Councilmember Hokanson said there was a risk to reader boards but at the same time it should 

Page 4 of 7
cc11052009



happen if it’s done right.  She felt uncomfortable passing something the Planning Commission 
denied.  The Council needed to be careful and not turn the City into a truck stop city.

Humphreys said he was excited to live in Heber but as far as aesthetics, this was the 
compromise.  He thought the slide-in traditional signs didn’t look as nice. The letters could fall 
off, etc. Days Market, for example, could also replace their slide-in board with a big electronic 
one according to the Code as it was written now.

Mayor Phillips said good signs were good for business and helped them stay in business.
Councilmember Straddeck said he agreed with Councilmember Horner that the current code was 
lacking, but he would not vote for this amendment.

Kohler said the current sign ordinance was given to the Chamber of Commerce for review.  He 
said he didn’t look at other cities’ ordinances or ask the Chamber of Commerce their opinion.

Councilmember Hokanson said there were many towns that looked nice that let their businesses 
advertise.  She was not ready to pass it but would like to see Planning Commission look at it and 
see what could be done. Mayor Phillips said the Council kept saying that Heber was a business-
friendly community so we needed to consider this. Councilmember Bradshaw said this might be 
something that Community Alliance for Main Street (CAMS) would be interested in. He 
suggested that staff could outline in what way CAMS could help.

Fawcett said signage had been of interest to him.  He was in favor of peaceful, good signs, but 
not gaudy, as there was so much of that these days. Mayor Phillips said signs were effective and 
did work.  He liked knowing what was on sale.  These were tough times and businesses needed 
help.

Councilmember Bradshaw asked for a thorough review from staff and requested input from 
outside sources.  Councilmember Horner wanted staff to look at other cities, such as St. George, 
Cedar City and Jackson, WY.  Heber City wasn’t a resort community but we liked what we had 
and wanted to keep it.  

Councilmember Patterson motioned to continue and have staff look into this further, as well as 
gather data from outside sources.  Councilmember Bradshaw seconded the motion.  

Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner and Patterson.
Ordinance 2009-16 – An Ordinance Amending the Heber City Municipal Code – Chapter 
18.102 – Affordable Housing and Amending Section 17.020.020 – Preliminary Plans 
(Continued from the October 15, 2009 Meeting):  Councilmember Horner said McDonald was 
grateful to the Planning Commission and staff for their work.  He wanted to put this ordinance 
before the Housing Authority Board for their consideration before the Council approved it. 

Page 5 of 7
cc11052009



Councilmember Bradshaw said the Housing Authority had only requested that there was a 
working ordinance.  Mayor Phillips asked if the City would pay the same proportion as the 
County. Councilmember Bradshaw stated that right now Wasatch County and Midway had 
ordinances that were better than Heber’s current ordinance, but this proposed ordinance was as 
good as it got.

Councilmember Straddeck moved to continue this until the Housing Authority had a chance to 
review the proposed ordinance and give feedback. Councilmember Patterson seconded the 
motion.  

Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner and Patterson.

Ordinance 2009-20 – An Ordinance Adopting Section 9.22.060 of the Heber City Municipal 
Code, Unruly Gatherings:  Sgt. Bradley gave some statistics on the alcohol and drug usage of 
teenagers.  Kathy Day gave some background on the surveys and their validity.  This survey was 
just done in the spring.  Chief Rhoades said through a grant by Heber Valley Counseling, 
Detective Thacker went to Texas and learned of the ordinance.  At the conference, it was 
reported that alcohol and the by-products such as rape decreased by 50 percent after the 
ordinance was enacted in Tucson, AZ.  

Councilmember Horner asked what would consist of an unruly gathering, and if an illegal 
substance had to be there.  Sgt. Bradley said noise would also be included but there would have 
to be a complaint for the officers to act. Mayor Phillips said this would be another tool the police 
could use to help their work.  It would be considered a last resort.  Chief Rhoades envisioned it 
this way: the police would give a warning, and then if the action persisted, use this red tag.  If 
there was teenage drinking, they could go right to this.

Mayor Phillips wanted to know why and how this would be used.  Councilmember Horner said 
he was for preventing teenage problems but didn’t know if this specifically was the intent.  Chief 
Rhoades said they weren’t out there head hunting, but asked the Council to give them the tools to 
work with.  Councilmember Horner asked if this was the only way to ticket the people.  Sgt. 
Bradley said no, but it was a stricter way that helped the police.  As it stood now, the police 
could ticket again and again but some residences would never change.  This ordinance would 
help with enforcement, including fines and public postings to motivate the residence to stop. 
Discussion and examples given on police calls without this ordinance vs. with the ordinance.
Day said parents who saw red tags on houses would know not to allow their kids to go to those 
houses.  She asserted that sexual assault went down 40% in Tucson, AZ, where this ordinance 
was implemented.  Councilmember Hokanson said she would support something like this.  Day 
said if a landlord got this tag, they would have the right to evict the tenants.

Page 6 of 7
cc11052009



Councilmember Horner asked what could be red tagged.  It was indicated that homes and 
businesses were eligible to be red tagged.  If the business reported the party, they would not be 
red tagged.  Councilmember Straddeck liked this because it let shame do the work.  Shame was a 
great motivator.   He was in favor of putting this into practice.  He stated if there became a need 
to revisit it because of over aggressiveness, the Council would do it, but he was in favor of 
supporting the police.

Mayor Phillips expressed a desire to let the public know about this ordinance in the newspaper 
and by posting it in public places.  He wanted to unite with the County and work together so this 
could be successful. He also wanted to give the judge leeway to consider the circumstances.
Councilmember Horner liked this ordinance but had concerns with the lack of specifics.  Sgt. 
Bradley said there were other traffic and criminal ordinances also, so all aspects were covered.

Councilmember Straddeck moved to adopt Ordinance 2009-20. Councilmember Bradshaw 
seconded the motion.  

Voting Aye:  Council members Bradshaw, Hokanson, Straddeck, Horner and Patterson.

Mayor Phillips again asked for this to be publicized very well so parents would be aware.  Day 
wanted to commend Sgt. Bradley and Detective Thacker for their work and Councilmember 
Bradshaw who sat on the Wasatch Alcohol Coalition and his dedication in attending the 
meetings. Mayor Phillips also suggested letting Kraig Powell and the school superintendent 
know of this new ordinance.  Day wanted to have informational meetings to get the word out.

Chief Rhoades talked about Cowboy Poetry and that it was going well.  He also informed the 
Council that Officer Fitzsimmons had responded to a medical call and used a defibrillator to save 
a high school teacher’s life.  Chief Rhoades said Officer Fitzsimmons would be given a 
commendation to wear on his uniform. Mayor Phillips said he would like to recognize Officer 
Fitzsimmons at the next Council meeting as well.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

_____________________________
Michelle Kellogg, Deputy Recorder

Page 7 of 7
cc11052009


